

**BYLAWS
OF THE
JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY**

Adopted April 7, 2011

Amended

December 1, 2011

April 5, 2012

October 4, 2012

August 29, 2013

October 5, 2017

November 4, 2021

December 2, 2021

December 1, 2022

April 6, 2023

ARTICLE I - THE AGENCY

Section 1. NAME. The name of the Agency shall be “The Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency” (JCIDA).

Section 2. MISSION STATEMENT. To advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity, and economic welfare of the people of the County and to improve their recreation opportunities, prosperity and standard of living.

Section 3. SEAL OF AGENCY. The seal of the Agency shall be in the form of a circle and shall bear the name of the Agency and the year of its organization.

Section 4. OFFICE OF AGENCY. The office of the Agency shall be at 800 Starbuck Avenue, Suite 800 in the City of Watertown, New York, but the Agency may have other offices at such other places as the Agency may from time to time designate by resolution.

Section 5. FISCAL YEAR. The fiscal year of the Agency shall commence on the first day of January of each year and end on the last day of December.

ARTICLE II - BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. BOARD MEMBER APPOINTMENTS. There shall be between three and seven board members for the JCIDA. All board member appointments are made by the Jefferson County Board of Legislators (JCBOL). All board members shall serve at the pleasure of the JCBOL.

Section 2. - RESIGNATIONS AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS.

(a) Any Director of the Agency may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Chairman or the Secretary, with a copy provided to the JCBOL. The resignation by or removal of a member of the Agency from the Agency board shall have the effect of resignation or removal of that Director of the Agency. Any such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein or, if no time is specified, then on delivery. Acceptance of the resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

ARTICLE III - OFFICERS

Section 1. OFFICERS. The officers of the Agency shall be a Chairman, a Vice Chairman, a Secretary, a Treasurer, and at the option of the Agency, an Assistant Secretary, and an Assistant Treasurer.

Section 2. CHAIRMAN. The Chairman shall preside at all meetings of the Agency. Except as otherwise authorized by resolution of the Agency the Chairman or board approved designee shall sign all agreements, contracts, deeds, and any other instruments of the Agency. At each meeting the Chairman or board approved designee shall submit such recommendations and information as he/she may consider proper concerning the business, affairs and policies of the Agency.

Section 3. VICE CHAIRMAN. The Vice Chairman shall perform the duties of the Chairman in the absence or incapacity of the Chairman; and in case of the resignation or death of the Chairman, the Vice Chairman shall perform such duties as are imposed on the Chairman until such time as the Agency shall appoint a new Chairman.

Section 4. SECRETARY. The Secretary shall review the records of the Agency, and shall review the record keeping procedures of the Agency and storage of such records. The Secretary shall ensure that the seal of the Agency is stored in a safe place and he/she, except as otherwise authorized by resolution of the Agency, shall have power to affix such seal to all contracts and other instruments authorized to be executed by the Agency.

Section 5. ASSISTANT SECRETARY. The Assistant Secretary shall perform the duties of the Secretary in the absence or incapacity of the Secretary; and in the case of the resignation or death of the Secretary, the Assistant Secretary shall perform such duties as are imposed on the secretary until such time as the Agency shall appoint a new Secretary.

Section 6. TREASURER. The Treasurer shall oversee the care and custody of all funds of the Agency. The Treasurer or board approved designee shall sign all instruments of indebtedness, all orders, and all checks for the direction of the Agency. Except as otherwise authorized by resolution of the Agency, all such instruments of indebtedness, orders and checks shall be counter-signed by the Chairman. Treasurer shall

oversee with the Comptroller regular books of accounts showing receipts and expenditures, and shall render to the Agency at each regular meeting an account of his transactions and also of the financial condition of the Agency. He/she shall give such bond for the faithful performance of his duties as the Agency may determine.

Section 7. ASSISTANT TREASURER. The Assistant Treasurer shall perform the duties of the Treasurer in the absence or incapacity of the treasurer; and in case of resignation or death of the Treasurer, the Assistant Treasurer shall perform such duties as are imposed on the Treasurer until such time as the Agency shall appoint a new Treasurer. He/she shall give such bond for the faithful performance of his duties as the Agency may determine.

Section 8. ADDITIONAL DUTIES. The officers of the Agency shall perform such other duties and functions as may from time to time be required by the Agency, by the bylaws of the Agency, or by the rules and regulations of the Agency.

Section 9. APPOINTMENT OF OFFICERS. All officers of the Agency are appointed by the Board of Directors as recommended by the Nominating Committee.

Section 10. VACANCIES. Should any office become vacant, the Agency shall appoint a successor from among its membership at the next regular meeting, and such appointment shall be for the unexpired term of said office.

ARTICLE VI - MEETINGS

Section 1. ANNUAL MEETING. The annual meeting of the Agency shall be held at the first meeting of the fiscal year and conducted in accordance with the Open Meetings Law of the State of New York (“OML”).

Section 2. REGULAR MEETINGS. Regular meetings of the Agency may be held at such times and places as from time to time may be determined by resolution of the Agency and conducted in accordance with the OML.

Section 3. SPECIAL MEETINGS. The Chairman or CEO of the Agency may, when he/she deems it desirable, call a special meeting of the Agency for the purpose of transacting any business designated in the call. The call for a special meeting shall be conducted in accordance with the OML and may also be delivered to each member of the Agency or may be mailed, faxed or e-mailed to the business or home address of each member of the Agency at least two days prior to the date of such special meeting. Waivers of notice may be signed by any members failing to receive a proper notice. At such the call, but if all the members of the Agency are present at special meeting, with or without notice thereof, any and all business may be transacted at such special meeting.

Section 4. QUORUM. At all meetings of the Agency, a majority of the members of the Agency shall constitute a quorum for the purpose of transacting business;

provided that a smaller number may meet and adjourn to some other time or until the quorum is obtained.

Section 5. PARTICIPATION BY VIDEOCONFERENCING. In accordance with the Agency’s Videoconferencing Policy, any one or more members of the board may participate in a meeting of the board or committee by videoconference from non-public locations when necessitated by “extraordinary circumstances” (as identified by the policy) with the following provisions:

- a) Any member attending via videoconferencing from a non-public setting under extraordinary circumstances will not be counted toward a quorum, but will be considered present and may participate and vote.
- b) The number of members participating in person--including any member attending via videoconference in a predetermined and noticed public location, or from a public location under extraordinary circumstances—must constitute a quorum.
- c) Any member participating via videoconferencing must be visible, heard, and identifiable by all members attending in person, as well as members of the public attending in person or via videoconference.
- d) When participating under “extraordinary circumstances” by which a member of the public body may request participation via videoconferences, they must notify the Agency staff by phone or email as soon as the circumstance is presented.

Section 6. ORDER OF BUSINESS. At the regular meetings of the Agency the following shall be the order of business.

- 1. Call to Order
- 2. Pledge of Allegiance
- 3. Privilege of the Floor
- 4. Approval of the Minutes of the previous meeting
- 5. Treasurer’s Report
- 6. Committee Reports
 - Executive Committee
 - Governance Committee
 - Loan Review Committee
 - Audit/Finance Committee
 - Nominating Committee
- 7. Unfinished Business
- 8. New Business
- 9. Counsel
- 10. Adjournment

All resolutions shall be in writing and shall be copied in a journal of the proceedings of the Agency.

Section 7. MANNER OF VOTING. The voting on all questions coming before the Agency shall be by consensus requiring a majority of the full board to pass or deny an action.

ARTICLE V - COMMITTEES

Section 1. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE. The Executive Committee shall consist of the officers of the Agency and the immediate past chairman. The Executive Committee shall exercise the powers of the Board of Directors in the interim between meetings of the directors with general power to discharge the duties of the Board of Directors except as such power from time to time may be limited by the Board.

A majority of the Executive Committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

The Executive Committee shall keep books of separate minutes and report their action at the next meeting of the Board of Directors or as often as they may be required by the Board.

Section 2. GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE. The Governance Committee shall be appointed by the Chairman and approved by the Board of Directors. The purpose of the committee is to (a) keep the Board informed of current best practices in corporate governance, (b) review corporate governance trends for applicability to the JCIDA, (c) update the JCIDA's corporate governance principles and governance practices, and (d) advise the Jefferson County Board of Legislators on the skills, qualities and professional or educational experiences necessary to be effective Board members. The Governance Committee shall be comprised of at least three members that are well versed in these areas of Corporate Governance.

Section 3. LOAN REVIEW COMMITTEE. The Loan Review Committee shall be appointed by the Chairman and approved by the Board of Directors. The purpose of the Loan Review Committee is to follow the adopted Lending Policy to review applications and business plans and make recommendations to the Board of Directors for loans and other incentives such as lease-leasebacks and PILOTs.

Section 4. AUDIT COMMITTEE. The Audit Committee shall be appointed by the Chairman and approved by the Board of Directors. The purpose of the committee is to (a) assure that the authority's board fulfills its responsibilities for the authority's internal and external audit process, the financial reporting process and the system of risk assessment and internal controls over financial reporting; and (b) provide an avenue of communication between management, the independent auditors, the internal auditors, and the board of directors. The Audit Committee shall be comprised of at least 3 members.

Section 5. NOMINATING COMMITTEE. The Nominating Committee shall be appointed by the Chairman and approved by the Board of Directors. The purpose of the Nominating Committee is to recommend officers for the Agency to be appointed at the regular monthly meeting of the Agency prior to the start of each fiscal year.

Section 6. FINANCE COMMITTEE. The Finance Committee shall be appointed by the Chairman and approved by the Board of Directors. It will review the Agency's budgets, proposals, and contracts. The Committee shall be composed of no less than three and no more than five members.

Section 7. AD HOC COMMITTEES. The Ad Hoc Committee(s) shall be appointed by the Chairman and approved by the Board of Directors. The Ad Hoc Committee(s) may be formed as needed at any regular meeting of the Agency.

ARTICLE VI - INDEMNIFICATION

Section 1. Authorized Indemnification. Unless clearly prohibited by law or Section 2 of this Article, the Agency shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless any person ("Indemnified Person") made, or threatened to be made, a party in any action or proceeding, whether civil or administrative, investigative or otherwise, including any action by or in the right of the Agency, by reason that he or she, whether before or after adoption of this Section, (a) is or was a Member or officer of the Agency, or (b) is serving or served, in any capacity, at the request of the Agency, as a Member or officer of any affiliate of the Agency. The indemnification shall include, but shall not be limited to, all judgments, fines, penalties, amounts paid in settlement (provided the Agency shall have consented to such settlement) and reasonable expenses, including attorneys' fees and costs of investigation, incurred by an Indemnified Person with respect to any such threatened or actual action or proceeding, and any appeal thereof.

Section 2. Prohibited Indemnification. The Agency shall not indemnify any person if a judgment or other final adjudication adverse to the Indemnified Person (or to the person whose actions are the basis for the action or proceeding) establishes, or the Members in good faith determine, that such person's acts were committed in bad faith or were the result of active and deliberate dishonesty and were material to the cause of action so adjudicated or that he or she personally gained a financial profit or other advantage to which he or she was not legally entitled.

Section 3. Advancement of Expenses. The Agency shall, on request of any Indemnified Person who is or may be entitled to be indemnified by the Agency, pay or promptly reimburse the Indemnified Person's reasonably incurred expenses in connection with a threatened or actual action or proceeding prior to its final disposition. However, no such advancement of expenses shall be made unless the Indemnified Person makes a binding, written commitment to repay the Agency, with interest, for any amount

advanced for which it is ultimately determined that he or she is not entitled to be indemnified under the law or Section 2 of this Article. An Indemnified Person shall cooperate in good faith with any request by the Agency that common legal counsel be used by the parties to such action or proceeding who are similarly situated unless it would be inappropriate to do so because of actual or potential conflicts among the interests of the parties.

Section 4. Indemnification of Others. Unless clearly prohibited by law or Section 2 of this Article, the Agency may approve indemnification as set forth in this Article for a person who is or was employed by the Agency or who is or was a volunteer for the Agency, and who is made, or threatened to be made, a party in any action or proceeding, as the result of such employment or volunteer activity.

Section 5. Determination of Indemnification. Indemnification mandated by a final order of a court of competent jurisdiction will be paid. After termination or disposition of any actual or threatened action or proceeding against an Indemnified Person, if indemnification has not been ordered by a court the Members shall, upon written request by the Indemnified Person, determine whether and to what extent indemnification is permitted pursuant to these By-laws. Before indemnification can occur the Members must explicitly find that such indemnification will not violate the provisions of Section 2 of this Article. No Member with a personal interest in the outcome, or who is a party to such actual or threatened action or proceeding concerning which indemnification is sought, shall participate in this determination. If a quorum of disinterested Members is not obtainable, the Members shall act only after receiving the opinion in writing of independent legal counsel that indemnification is proper in the circumstances under then applicable law and these By-laws.

Section 6. Binding Effect. Any person entitled to indemnification under these By-laws has a legally enforceable right to indemnification which cannot be abridged by amendment of these By-laws with respect to any event, action or omission occurring prior to the date of such amendment.

Section 7. Insurance. The Agency is not required to purchase Members' and officers' liability insurance, but the Agency may purchase such insurance if authorized and approved by the Members. To the extent permitted by law, such insurance may insure the Agency for any obligation it incurs as a result of this Article or operation of law and it may insure directly the Members, officers, employees or volunteers of the Agency for liabilities against which they are not entitled to indemnification under this Article as well as for liabilities against which they are entitled or permitted to be indemnified by the Agency.

ARTICLE VII - AMENDMENTS

Section 1. AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS. The bylaws of the Agency shall be amended only with the approval of at least a majority of all of the members of the Agency at a regular or a special meeting, but no such amendment shall be adopted unless at least seven days written notice thereof has been previously given to all members of the Agency.